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GENERAL QUESTIONS

1)	 R1 is obstructed between 1B and 2B.  Even though R1 was obstructed there are reasons why they can still be called out between these two 
bases.  Which of the following is NOT a reason they could be called out between 1B and 2B?   

		  a.	 If they commit an act of interference.
		  b.	 Violating the look back rule.
		  c.	 Missing first base, if properly appealed.
		  d.	 Leaving first base early on a caught fly ball, if properly appealed.

2)	 Which of the following is an act that cannot be appealed?
		  a.	 A batter batting out of order.
		  b.	 A runner missing a base.
		  c.	 A batter swinging at a pitch, that the plate umpire rules a ball.
		  d.	 A runner leaving a base early on a caught fly ball.

3)	 When a coach physically assists a runner which of the following is a true statement?
		  a.	 A dead ball is called.
		  b.	 A delayed dead ball is called.
		  c.	 Interference is called and all runners must return to the last base touched prior to the interference.
		  d.	 The assisted runner is declared out and play continues.

4)	 F3 who is standing on the 1B foul line is contacted by B1, who is completely in the three foot running lane, while attempting to catch a fly ball 
in foul territory. F3 first contacts the ball in foul territory but is unable to make the catch and the ball rolls fair where F3 picks it up.  The umpire 
should rule:

		  a.	 The ball was first touched in foul territory, this is just a foul ball.
		  b.	 F3 gained control of the ball in fair territory, this is ruled a fair ball.
		  c.	 B1 is guilty of interference with F3, the ball is dead and B1 is called out.
		  d.	 B1 was in the running lane when the contact occurred, F3 is guilty of obstruction and B1 should be awarded 2B.  

5)	 Bottom of the 7th inning, score is tied with 1 out and R1 is on 3B, R2 is on 2B and R3 is on 1B.  B5 hits a fly ball over F9’s head scoring R1 from 
3B. Thinking the game is over, R2 and R3 do not advance and touch their respective bases and B5 does not touch 1B. Instead they join in 
celebrating with team members at home plate. F1 standing near the pitching plate makes a verbal appeal to the base umpire that B5 did not 
touch 1B and the base umpire calls B5 out. Then F4 appeals that R3 did not touch 2B and the base umpire calls R3 out. The correct ruling is:  

		  a.	 This is a proper Dead Ball Appeal - Run does not count continue to the 8th inning.
		  b.	 Improper Live Ball Appeal – Run counts, game is over.
		  c.	 Proper Dead Ball Appeal, B5 and R3 would both be out on appeal. However, when B5 was ruled out on appeal for the second out it 	
			   removed the force out on R3 and since R1 had scored prior to the appeal on R3 at 2B the run would count and the game is over.
		  d.	 Improper Dead Ball Appeal- No appeal can be honored after the winning run has scored.

6)	 Prior to the pitch a batter’s feet may be:  
		  a.	 Completely within the lines of the batter’s box.
		  b.	 Touching the lines of the batter’s box, but no part of the foot may be outside the lines.
		  c.	 Touching the ground outside the batter’s box as long as part of the foot is still in contact with the batter’s box lines.
		  d.	 Both a. and b. are correct.

7)	 With no outs and R1 on 2B, B2 swings at and misses the pitch.  R1 breaks for 3B and while F2 is throwing to 3B in an attempt to retire R1. B2, 
while remaining in the batter’s box backs up to readjust their footing and bumps F2 causing an errant throw.  What is the correct ruling?  

		  a.	 B2 is guilty of interference.  Signal delayed dead ball and when the play is over, B2 is out and R1 must return to 2B.
		  b.	 B2 is not guilty of interference as they remained in the batter’s box which is a sanctuary for the batter.
		  c.	 B2 is guilty of interference. The ball is dead, B2 is out and R1 must return to 2B.
		  d.	 B2 is not guilty of interference because B2’s action was not intentional.

8)	 With no outs, R1 at 3B and R2 at 2B, B3 hits a long shot to the outfield fence.  By the time F8 retrieves the ball R1 and R2 have scored.  B3 is 
rounding 3B and coming home when B4, the on-deck batter, is instructing B3 to slide into the plate.  While doing so, B4 is hit with the thrown 
ball deflecting it away from F2 and in the umpires judgment removes F2’s opportunity to put B3 out.

		  a.	 B4 is guilty of on-deck batter interference and B3 is declared out.
		  b.	 B4 is guilty of on-deck batter interference and both B3 and B4 are declared out.
		  c.	 B4 is guilty of on-deck batter interference and B4 is declared out.
		  d.	 There is no interference as B4 has the right to leave the on-deck circle to direct runners advancing from third to home.
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9)	 R1 on 3B with two outs. B4 hits a slow ground ball to F3. R1, on the play, crosses home plate as F3 fields the ball and steps toward B4 to attempt 
a tag.  B4 stops and then steps back to avoid the tag. 

		  a.	 The ball is dead and B4 is out, however the run scores since R1 had touched home plate before the out occurred.
		  b.	 The ball remains live, there is no out, and the run scores.
		  c.	 The ball is dead, B4 is out and the run does not score.
		  d.	 None of the above. 

10)	 With no outs and no runners on base, B1 swings and misses the pitch for strike three.  The pitch hits F2’s glove and ricochets down the front of 
the F2’s chest protector. B1 takes off running toward 1B and then continues to 2B before F2 finally retrieves the ball before it touches the ground. 

		  a.	 B1’s advance is legal and they are able to remain at 2B.
		  b.	 B1 is out on the catch by F2.
		  c.	 Securing possession by F2 is not considered a catch as it did not go sharply and directly to the catcher’s glove.
		  d.	 B1 cannot advance as the ball became dead when it hit the catcher’s chest protector.

11)	 R1 on 1B with no outs.  B2 hits a ball that is deflected by F1; the ball changes direction towards R1 who is running to 2B. F4 who is attempting to 
make a play on the ball makes contact with R1.  What is the proper ruling? 

		  a.	 This is interference by R1, the ball is dead and R1 is called out. 
		  b.	 If the umpire judges that F4 could have made a play on the ball, interference should be ruled, the ball is dead and R1 is called out.
		  c.	 If the umpire judges that R1 intentionally interfered with F4, then interference should be ruled, the ball is dead and R1 is called out.  If R1 
			   did not intentionally interfere, then there is no violation and the ball remains live.
		  d.	 If the umpire judges that F4 could have made an out, interference should be ruled, the ball is dead and R1 is called out.

12)	 A line drive to the outfield that hits the foul pole above the top of the fence is a: 
		  a.	 Four base award.
		  b.	 Two base award.
		  c.	 Foul ball.
		  d.	 Home run. 

13)	 With R1 on 2B and R2 on 1B, B3 hits a line drive over F4’s head. F4 throws their detached glove and hits the ball causing it to fall to the ground. 
What is the correct ruling?

		  a.	 Rule Dead ball, award all runners two bases.
		  b.	 Signal a delayed dead ball, at the end of the playing action if they have not already obtained them, award B3 3B and R1 and R2 are 	
			   awarded home. 
		  c.	 Rule a dead ball, advance all runners 3 bases from the time of the pitch. 
		  d.	 Signal a delayed dead ball, at the end of the playing action eject F4 for unsporting behavior.   
 
14)	 Which of the following is true about a legally batted ball that hits home plate:
		  a.	 If it bounces up and hits the batter while still in the batter’s box it is a foul ball.
		  b.	 If it settles on home plate, it is a fair ball.
		  c.	 If it is kicked by the batter-runner in fair territory when running to 1B it is interference.
		  d.	 All of the above are true. 

15)	 D. Jones is replaced in the 2nd inning by T. Johnson to play defense for F7 and batting 6th. In the 3rd inning B6, T. Johnson gets a hit and D. 
Jones re-enters to run for T. Johnson. In the 5th inning the offense tries to re-enter T. Johnson for D. Jones and the umpires do not allow it. What 
is the correct ruling?

		  a.	 Correct ruling, our rules states a player may only be replaced or substituted for once.
		  b.	 Correct ruling, only starters can re-enter the game.
		  c.	 Incorrect ruling, all players can re-enter the game once.
		  d.	 None of the above

16)	 B1 comes to the plate and strikes out.  B3 then comes up to bat and strikes out.  Now B2 comes to the plate and hits a double.  The defense then 
properly appeals before the next pitch that B2 is batting out of order.  The umpire should rule:

		  a.	 B2 should have batted after B1; B3’s at bat is ignored.  B2 remains on 2B with 1 out and B3 comes up to bat. 
		  b.	 Once a pitch was thrown to B2 it made B3’s at bat legal, so the proper batter would be B4. Since B2 completed a turn at bat B4, the 
			   person who should have batted, is called out for the third out of the inning, B5 would lead off the next inning.
		  c.	 Once a pitch was thrown to B2 it made them the legal batter so there is no violation, B2 remains at 2B with 2 outs and B3 is the next batter.
		  d.	 Once a pitch was thrown to B2 it made them the legal batter so there is no violation, B2 remains at 2B with 2 outs and since B3 has 
			   already batted, B4 is the next batter.
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17)	 B1 hits a ground ball to the right of F3 who dives and fields the ground ball. F4 is moving to their left and continues to 1B. F3, with the ball in 
their glove attempts to beat B1 to 1B. F3, realizing that F4 is between them and 1B with the ball in their glove touches the glove of F4 who is 
standing on 1B before B1 reaches 1B. What is the correct ruling? 

		  a.	 When F3 and F4’s gloves touch it is the same as F3 touching the base, B1 would be out.
		  b.	 In the umpires judgement F3 would have beaten B1 to the base if F4 would not have been in the way, B1 would be out.
		  c.	 F3 was in control of the ball but not touching 1B and F4 was touching 1B but was not in control of the ball, B1 would be safe.
		  d.	 None of the above.
 
18)	 In the bottom of the 3rd inning, a player runs out of the dugout to the pitcher’s position and in Fast Pitch throws 5 warm up pitches, or in Slow 

Pitch throws 3 warm up pitches.  They return to the dugout and the pitcher of record then comes out and without taking any warmup pitches, 
starts the bottom half of the inning.  What is the correct ruling? 

		  a.	 Illegal it has to be the pitcher of record to throw warm up pitches.  The first batter is awarded 1B in both cases.
		  b.	 Legal, there is no limitation on who throws the warm up pitches. 
		  c.	 Legal, but if the player throwing the pitches is not in the game they are considered an unreported substitute and subject to that penalty 
			   if appealed.
		  d.	 Legal, but if the player throwing the pitch is in the game they become the pitcher of record and have to face the first batter (at least one
			    pitch). 
 
19)	 The game is tied following 7 innings of play.  Who is the proper player to place on 2B?
		  a.	 The player who recorded the last out for the offensive team. 
		  b.	 The player who is scheduled to bat last in that half inning. 
		  c.	 A courtesy runner may be used for the player who is to be placed on 2B, as long as all courtesy runner rules are followed. 
		  d.	 Both b and c are correct. 

20)	 The batter is out when they make contact with the ball and any part of their foot is: 
		  a.	 In contact with the plate, even if part of the foot is still in contact with the batter’s box line. 
		  b.	 If their entire foot is in contact with the ground completely outside the batter’s box. 
		  c.	 If any part of the foot is in contact with the ground completely outside the batter’s box, even if part of the foot is on the batter’s box line. 
		  d.	 Both a and b are correct. 

21)	 Which of the following are true about the knob of the bat: 
		  a.	 It shall have a diameter of at least 1.6 inches.
		  b.	 It cannot have any sharp edges. 
		  c.	 It must be permanently attached to the bat and may be covered with grip tape. 
		  d.	 All of the above are true.

22)	 With R1 still standing on 2B F2 attempting to return the pitched ball to F1 hits B2 on the arm with the ball by accident. R1 advances to 3B as the 
ball rolls away and is retrieved by F2.  What is the proper ruling?

		  a.	 B2 is out for interference and R1 must return to 2B.
		  b.	 The advance of R1 to 3B is legal and B2 is not out because of the errant throw by F2.
		  c.	 The ball is dead and the advancement of R1 shall be nullified.
		  d.	 B2 is awarded 1B and R1 is entitled to remain at 3B. 

23)	 With R1 on 2B, B2 singles rounds 1B and is obstructed by F3.  R1 advances to and rounds 3B.  F6 receives the ball from F8 as B2 returns to 1B.  
F6 throws to F5 making a play on R1 at 3B. B2 seeing the throw to 3B leaves 1B advancing to 2B and is thrown out sliding into 2B.  What is the 
correct ruling? 

		  a.	 B2 was obstructed between 1B and 2B they cannot be put out between those bases, B2 would be returned to 1B since that is the base 
			   the umpire judged they would have reached without the obstruction. 
		  b.	 B2 had obtained the base they would have reached, and there was a subsequent play on a different runner, B2 would remain out at 2B. 
		  c.	 Obstruction has a minimum one base advancement; therefore B2 would be awarded 2B.
		  d.	 R1 being off of 3B and drawing a throw is considered interference, R1 is called out and B2 would be returned to 1B since the ball is dead 
			   on interference. 
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24)	 F1 touches the fingers of their pitching hand to the dirt, transfers the ball to their pitching hand, and steps on the pitcher’s plate.  The plate 
umpire immediately calls an illegal pitch, announcing that F1 did not wipe their fingers after touching the dirt.  What is the correct ruling? 

		  a.	 Illegal pitch is the correct ruling; no foreign substance may be used on the ball.
		  b.	 Illegal pitch is the correct ruling, but F1 should also be ejected for using a foreign substance on the ball. 
		  c.	 This is an incorrect ruling; dirt is not a foreign substance and does not have to be wiped off before coming in contact with the ball. 
		  d.	 Illegal pitch is the correct ruling, and the umpire will issue a warning to F1 and notify their coach; if any other defensive player uses a 
			   foreign substance on the ball they will be ejected.

25)	 With 1 out and R1 on 3B and R2 on 1B, B4 hits a double scoring R1 and advancing R2 to 3B.  After the ball has been returned to the infield and 
time is called, F7 makes a verbal appeal to the base umpire that R2 missed 2B while advancing to 3B. The correct ruling is:  

		  a.	 This is a proper dead ball appeal, the base umpire should rule on whether R2 missed 2B. 
		  b.	 Since F7 no longer has the ball, this is an improper appeal and the base umpire should not rule on the play. 
		  c.	 This is an improper deal ball appeal, only a coach or infielder may make a dead ball appeal. 
		  d.	 Since the ball is dead there is no longer an opportunity to appeal the last play. 

26)	 With 2 outs, R1 on 3B and F5 playing in front of the runner, B4 hits a fair line drive down 3B line which F5 dives for and misses. The ball then 
hits R1 who is standing on the base. What is the correct call?

		  a.	 Dead ball, R1 is out for interference as they were hit by an untouched batted ball, B4 is awarded 1B.
		  b.	 Dead ball, R1 was hit with the ball; but R1 is not out since they were behind the fielder B4 is awarded 1B.
		  c.	 R1 was behind the fielder when hit with the ball so the ball remains live, R1 is called out for being hit with the ball.  
		  d.	 R1 was in contact with the base when hit with the ball and they did not intentionally get hit with the ball so the ball remains live.

27)	 Player #12, listed on the line-up in the 8th position, bats and reaches 2B.  The offensive coach reports #14 as a substitute for #12, the second 
time #14 has appeared in the game for #12.  Play resumes and the next pitch is wild and the runner advances to 3B.  The defensive coach asks 
for time and protests that #41 is on 3B.  According to the line-up, #41 is a substitute previously used in the 6th position in the line-up and has a 
re-entry left.  How should the umpire rule?

		  a.	 #41 is an unreported substitute and is officially in the game, all advancement is legal.
		  b.	 #41 is an unreported substitute and is officially in the game and is called out.
		  c.	 #41 is an illegal player they are called out and disqualified. 
		  d.	 #41 is an illegal player they are disqualified and removed from the game. #14 or a legal substitute can be placed on 3B.
 
28)	 In the bottom of the 7th with R1 on 2B and one out a pitch gets away from F2 and is heading toward the opening in the dugout.  As R1 is 

advancing to 3B, F2 is worried the ball will enter dead ball territory and throws their mitt stopping the ball just before it enters dead ball 
territory.  The umpire should rule:

		  a.	 No violation F2 prevented the ball from entering dead ball territory, play on. 
		  b.	 Dead ball, R1 is awarded two bases from the time of the throw. 
		  c.	 Dead ball, R1 is awarded one base from the time F2’s mitt contacted the ball. 
		  d.	 Delayed dead ball, R1 would be awarded one base from the time of the pitch but may advance farther with liability to be put out. 
 
29)	 R1 on 3B and R2 on 1B with one out. B4 hits a sacrifice fly to F8 for the second out. R1 on 3B legally tags up and scores. R2 on 1B leaves the 

base early and is doubled up for the third out of the inning BUT R1 who was on 3B scored prior to the third out being made. Should the run 
count? 

		  a.	 Yes, R1 touched home plate prior to the 3rd out being recorded the run would count.
		  b.	 No, R2 was forced to return to 1B so this is a force out and no run can score. 

30)	 B1 hits a slow roller between F1 and F3. F1 kicks the ball to F3 who grabs it, dives and touches 1B with their glove while the ball is in their bare 
hand before B1 reaches the base. The umpire should rule:

		  a.	 Dead ball, F1 has committed an illegal act by kicking the ball B1 is awarded 1B.
		  b.	 B1 is out, F1 kicking the ball has no bearing on the call. 
		  c.	 B1 is safe at 1B, F3 must touch the base with a body part not their glove. 
		  d.	 B1 is safe at 1B, F3 kicking the ball is a form of obstruction.
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31)	 R1 on 2B and R2 on 1B with one out. B4 hits the ball about 20 feet into the air in the infield between F5, F6 and F1. The umpire declares infield 
fly as F6 makes an effort to catch the ball but was unable to do so. B4 reaches base safely and R1 who left base on the batted ball, continued 
to home plate to score. The defense appeals that R1 left too soon as they needed to wait for the ball to be touched or hit the ground before the 
base runners could leave their base.  The offense argues that B4 should be allowed to stay at 1B since F6 was unable to catch the fly ball. The 
umpire should rule:

		  a.	 R1’s run would count; B4 would be safe since the ball was not caught. 
		  b.	 R1’s run would count; B4 remains out due to the infield fly rule being declared. 
		  c.	 R1 would be placed on 3B; a runner cannot advance more than one base on an infield fly. 
		  d.	 R1 would be out as they advanced prior to the ball being touched; B4 would remain out due to the infield being declared. 

32)	 With R1 on 1B and 1 out, B3 hits a fly ball toward shallow right field, R1 who has started advancing on the hit realizes it may be caught and 
begins to return to 1B.  As R1 returns to 1B they have to run around F3 who has started toward the ball but stopped when they saw F9 making 
the play on the fly ball. The base umpire signals obstruction. R1 seeing F9 drop the ball leaves 1B attempting to advance to 2B but F9 throws 
the ball to F6 to retire R1 prior to reaching 2B. The correct ruling is:

		  a.	 R1 is out, since they were obstructed on the way back to 1B they are only protected to 1B.
		  b.	 R1 is out, R1 had reached 1B, the base they would have reached without obstruction, then F9 made a play on another runner by fielding 
			   the batted ball so R1 is no longer protected between 1B and 2B.      
		  c.	 Dead ball when R1 is put out, R1 is awarded 2B; they were obstructed between 1B and 2B and cannot be put out between these two 
			   bases.
		  d.	 Ball is dead immediately dead when R1 is obstructed R1 is awarded 2B. B3 is placed at 1B.
 
33)	 The bottom of the 2nd inning, F1 winces in pain after a pitch.  The coach requests and is granted time.  After a short discussion with F1 it is 

determined that they cannot continue due to the injury and is replaced by a new pitcher.  The Plate Umpire allows five (5) warm up pitches in 
fast pitch or three (3) warm up pitches in slow pitch. The umpire should rule:

		  a.	 Proper procedure, no additional warm up pitches are allowed.
		  b.	 The umpire is allowed to delay the start of play to allow F1 additional warm up pitches to ensure they are properly warmed up.

34)	 R1 on 2B with one out. B3 gets a base hit to the outfield. After R1 scores, the throw from F7 to the plate eludes F2 and is picked up by the on 
deck batter and given to the catcher.  The umpire should rule: 

		  a.	 Dead ball when touched by the on deck batter, if the umpire judges the touching interfered with F2’s opportunity to make an out on B3, 
			   B3 would be ruled out.  
		  b.	 Dead ball when touched by the on deck batter, if the umpire judges the touching did not interfere with F2’s opportunity to make an out 
			   on B3, B3 would be returned to the last base touched when the on deck batter touched the ball.
		  c.	 Dead ball when touched by the on deck batter, the on deck batter is ruled out and B3 would be returned to the last base touched when 
			   the on deck batter touched the ball.
		  d.	 Both a & b would be correct.

35)	 B1 hits a long fly ball that hits the outfield fence in the air, as B1 is approaching 2B F6 is standing over 2B awaiting the throw from the outfield 
making R1 stutter step and miss 2B. The base umpire calls obstruction as R1 continues on to 3B.  After the ball is dead F6 appeals that B1 
missed 2B.  The correct ruling is: 

		  a.	 B1 would be safe at 3B since F6’s obstruction caused them to miss 2B.
		  b.	 B1 cannot be called out between 2B and 3B, but B1 would be returned to 2B. 
		  c.	 B1 is out on proper appeal.
		  d.	 None of the above. 

36)	 B1 has a 2 ball 2 strike count and is stretching to hit an outside pitch and makes contact with F2’s glove as they are swinging.  They continue 
their swing and step on home plate as they make contact with the ball.  What is the correct ruling? 

		  a.	 B1 is out for making contact with the ball while touching home plate, catcher obstruction is ignored. 
		  b.	 B1 is out for making contact with the ball while touching home plate. B1 did not reach first base safely, the manager has the option of 
			   taking the result of the play or enforcing the obstruction by awarding B1 1B.  
		  c.	 There were penalties by both teams so the pitch is ignored and B1 remains at bat with a 2 ball 2 strike count.
		  d.	 B1 is called out for making contact with F2’s glove and is warned they will be ejected if this action is repeated. 
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SLOW PITCH QUESTIONS 

37)	 Slow Pitch Team with 10 players turns in line-up listing an EP. They win the coin toss and take the field on defense with 10 players. Before play 
begins the Plate Umpire notices that the home team dugout and is empty. He asks F2 where “where is your Extra Player?” F2 responds, “He’s 
on his way and will be here before we bat.”  The umpire should: 

		  a.	 Disqualify the Coach for submitting a false line-up card.
		  b.	 Take no action until the EP comes up in the batting order.
		  c.	 Remove the EP from the Home Team’s Line-up and continue the game.
		  d.	 Forfeit the game in favor to the Visiting Team.

38)	 In an adult Slow Pitch game, starting player #9 was substituted for in the second inning, re-entered the game in the third inning, and was 
substituted for again in the fifth inning, the team now wants to use player #9 as a courtesy runner in the seventh inning. What is the correct 
ruling?

		  a.	 Player #9 cannot be used as a courtesy runner. After being substituted for a second time in the fifth inning, they are no longer an 
			   eligible player.
		  b.	 Player #9 can be used as a courtesy runner since they were listed on the official line-up.
		  c.	 Player #9 can be used as a courtesy runner since no one has been used as a courtesy runner in the seventh inning.
		  d.	 Player #9 can be used as a courtesy runner for the pitcher and/or the catcher, only. 

39)	 In a slow pitch game, the ball slips from the pitches hand during the delivery or during the back swing.  What is the correct ruling?
		  a.	 The ball is dead, runners cannot advance and a ball is called on the batter.
		  b.	 The ball remains live, runners can advance at their own risk and a ball is called on the batter.
		  c.	 An illegal pitch is called, a ball is awarded to the batter.
		  d.	 A no pitch is declared.
 
40)	 The maximum height of the Pitch from the ground in all of Slow Pitch  is 10 Feet. 
		  a.	 True.
		  b.	 False.

41)	 The Pitch starts when the pitcher makes any motion with the ball after the required stop.
		  a.	 True.  
		  b.	 False. 

42)	 Which of the following is true about courtesy runners in slow pitch? 
		  a.	 Any eligible player can be a courtesy runner.
		  b.	 A courtesy runner cannot run for another courtesy runner.
		  c.	 If a players turn at bat comes while they are on base, the player they are running for is called out and the courtesy runner is removed 
			   from base and takes their turn at bat.
		  d.	 All of the above.
 
43)	 In Coed play the female batter has the option of hitting either the eleven or twelve-inch softball.  
		  a.	 True.
		  b.	 False.

                
MECHANIC QUESTIONS 

44)	 In a two-umpire or three-umpire system the Plate Umpire is responsible, after a ground ball up the middle, to trail the batter-runner with no 
runners starting on base or a runner starting at 1B only.

		  a.	 True. 
		  b.	 False. 

45)	 With no runners on base in the Three Umpire System when U1 chases, the responsibility to cover any play at 1B is:
		  a.	 The Plate Umpire who would extend their distance trailing the batter-runner.
		  b.	 U1, opening up or turning back toward first base after their responsibilities on their chase are over.
		  c.	 U3, coming across toward 1B.
		  d.	 None of the above.

Output On: December 14, 2018 10:27 AM High-Resolution PDF - PRINT READY



2019 USA Softball Umpire Exam USA Softball7

46)	 T-shirts are optional to wear, however, it is permissible to wear a Navy Blue T-shirt under a powder blue USA Softball polo shirt. 
		  a.	 True.
		  b.	 False. 

47)	 On a close call at 1B the base umpire is blocked from seeing the entire play.  The base umpire should: 
		  a.	 Make a call based on the information they have. 
		  b.	 When the play is over go to their partner for information to get the call correct. 
		  c.	 Only go to their partner when requested to do so by a coach. 
		  d.	 Both a and b are correct.
 
48)	 In the Two Umpire System with R1 at 1B and a ground ball to the infield the plate umpire should:
		  a.	 Trail the batter-runner no more than 1/3 of the way to 1B in fair territory and read the play. As R1 reaches 2B, stop, see the play at 1B, 	
			   then move toward 3B and get the best possible angle and distance for a possible play there.  As the play develops work to get an 	
			   unobstructed view of the play and obtain a final calling distance of 10-12 feet from the play.
		  b.	 Trail the batter-runner no more than 1/3 of the way to 1B in fair territory and read the play. As R1 approaches 2B move toward 3B to first 
			   obtain the proper angle then close the distance as the play develops working to get an unobstructed view of the play and to obtain a 
			   final calling distance of 10-12 feet from the play.
		  c.	 Move toward the center of the diamond and observe the play at 1B, then move toward 3B for a possible play on R1 at 3B.
		  d.	 Trail the batter-runner toward the center of the diamond and read the play. As R1 approaches 2B move toward 3B to first obtain the 
			   proper angle then close the distance as the play develops working to get an unobstructed view of the play and to obtain a final calling 
			   distance of 10-12 feet from the play.

49)	 What is the correct calling distance for a force play?
		  a.	 18-21 feet. 
		  b.	 No closer than 18 feet from the base. 
		  c.	 12-15 feet. 
		  d.	 None of the above. 
 
50)	 What is the correct calling distance for a tag play? 
		  a.	 18-21 feet 
		  b.	 10-12 feet. 
		  c.	 12-15 feet. 
		  d.	 No closer than 18 feet. 

ALTERNATIVE FAST PITCH QUESTIONS 

51)	 The DP enters the game defensively, and the FLEX is still in the game.  The player who is no longer playing defense has now become the new 
DP.

		  a.	 True. 
		  b.	 False. 

52)	 A JO Fast Pitch coach is getting ready to turn in their line-up at the pre-game coaches’ conference prior to their team’s first game of pool play 
in a USA Softball National Championship. The coach is confused where the FLEX should be listed in the line-up since they are batting the entire 
roster. To fill out the line-up correctly the coach asks you, the home plate umpire, before the line-up is officially turned in, where the FLEX goes. 
How do you respond?

		  a.	 You tell them, since the pre-game conference has begun, it’s too late for your assistance and they must fill out the line-up card whatever 
			   way they feel is correct.
		  b.	 You tell the coach to place the FLEX in the tenth position in the batting order and list the remaining roster players (EP’s) in the correct 
			   batting order behind the FLEX.
		  c.	 You tell the coach they can place their EP’s anywhere they want in the batting order and, therefore, the FLEX can also be listed in any 
			   position on the line-up card.
		  d.	 You tell the coach to place the FLEX in the last position on the line-up card.
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53)	 In a JO Fast Pitch game, with R1 on second base, a fly ball is hit to deep right-center field near the temporary outfield fence. U1 goes out 
to provide coverage for an accurate call. F8 leans against the fence, pushing it down, and, while lying on the fence makes the catch. Their 
momentum carries them over the fence into dead ball territory beyond the fence. What call should be made by U1?

		  a.	 Since the player caught the ball while lying on the fence, the catch should be nullified, and the batter awarded a home run.
		  b.	 Since the player caught the ball while lying on the fence and then carried it unintentionally into dead ball territory, the batter should be 
			   called out, dead ball, and R1 awarded two bases from the last base touched at the time the fielder left live ball territory.
		  c.	 Since the player caught the ball while lying on the fence and then carried it unintentionally into dead ball territory, the batter should be 
			   called out, dead ball, and R1 awarded one base from the last base touched at the time the fielder left live ball territory.
		  d.	 Since the player caught the ball while lying on the fence and then carried it unintentionally beyond the fence line, the ball is live and R1 
			   can run the bases at her own risk. 

54)	 In Fast Pitch when does the pitch begin? 
		  a.	 When the pitcher steps onto the pitcher’s plate and brings their hands together.
		  b.	 When the pitcher makes any motion toward home plate.
		  c.	 When the pitcher separates their hands once they have been placed together.
		  d.	 When the pitcher makes any motion that is part of the windup after the hands have been brought together.

55)	 During JO Fast Pitch Pool Play, with the team batting more than nine players, B5 gets a hit but twists their ankle when they reach 1B.  The coach 
requests a runner for the injured B5.  Which of the following is NOT allowable by rule?

		  a.	 Any player may replace the injured player to finish their running responsibilities.
		  b.	 The injured players batting position is skipped with no out recorded.
		  c.	 An eligible substitute can replace B5 in the lineup.
		  d.	 If B5 begins feeling better later in the game they can return to their position in the lineup.

56)	 R1 on 1B and no count on B2.  F1 commits an illegal pitch by bringing the hands together a second time.  The plate umpire signals illegal pitch.  
The pitcher continues their motion and just before the pitcher releases the ball R1 leaves the base and the base umpire calls the violation.  What 
is the correct ruling?

		  a.	 Since it occurred first, only the illegal pitch is enforced. R1 is advanced to 2B and B2 has a 1 ball and no strike count.
		  b.	 Both penalties are enforced.  R1 is out for leaving early and B2 has a 1 ball no strike count. 
		  c.	 Since R1 leaving early is an immediate dead ball only the leaving early penalty is enforced.
		  d.	 Since there were penalties from both teams a no pitch is declared.

57)	 All of the following result in an illegal pitch being declared, EXCEPT:
		  a.	 The pitcher deliberately dropping, rolling or bouncing the ball while in the pitching position in order to prevent the batter from striking it. 
		  b.	 The catcher being outside the lines of the catcher’s box when the pitch is released. 
		  c.	 The pitcher exceeding the 20-second time frame to release the pitch. 
		  d.	 The pitcher making more than 1 1/2 clockwise revolutions of the arm in the windmill motion. 
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FITTED PERFORMANCE POLY-SERGE CAP
#450 2.75-inch 8-stitch bill, fitted navy cap.
#440 Combo 2.5-inch 6-Stitch bill, fitted navy cap
* Cap Sizes: (6 1/2, 6 5/8, 6 3/4, 6 7/8, 7, 7 1/8, 7 1/4, 7 3/8,
7 1/2, 7 5/8, 7 3/4, 7 7/8, 8)...............................$18.00

FLEXFIT PERFORMANCE POLY-SERGE CAP
#453  Field, 2.75-inch 8-stitch bill, flex navy cap. Flex size 
Small, Med and Large.
#443  Combo 2.5-inch 6-Stitch bill, flex navy cap.
#433 Plate 2-inch 4-Stich bill. Flex fit navy cap.
Flex size Small (6 1/2-6 7/8), Medium (7-7 1/4), 
Large (7 3/8 – 7 5/8)..........................................$18.00

ADJUSTABLE PERFORMANCE POLY-SERGE CAP
#455    Field, 2.75-inch 8-stitch bill, adjustable navy cap. 
Velcro strap closure.  Adjusts to Med-Lrg ( 7 – 7 3/4.)
#445 Combo 2.5-inch 6-Stitch bill, adjustable navy cap. Velcro 
strap closure. Adjusts to Med-Lrg (7 – 7 3/4.)
..........................................................................$18.00

FITTED PREFORMANCE POLY-SREGE CAP (NO LETTERS)
#402FP Field, 2.75-inch 8-stitch bill, fitted navy cap.
#402BP Combo 2.5-inch 6-Stitch bill, fitted navy cap.
#402PP Plate 2-Inch 4 stitch bill, fitted navy cap.
* Cap Sizes: (6 7/8, 7, 7 1/8, 7 1/4, 7 3/8, 7 1/2, 7 5/8, 
7 3/4)..................................................................$11.00

USA SOFTBALL UMPIRE POLO
#1020 Official USA Softball umpire shirt. White with navy 
side flank panel. 
#1030 Official USA Softball umpire shirt. Powder blue 
with navy side flank panel. 
#1040  Official USA Softball umpire shirt.  Navy with 
powder blue side flank panel. 

Self styled collar with navy trim accent. Performance 
polyester fabric wicks sweat away from your skin to keep 
you dry. Wrinkle free for easy care.
Size: S,M,L,XL...................................................$32.00
Size: 2XL...........................................................$34.00          
Size: 3XL...........................................................$36.00      
Size: 4XL...........................................................$38.00    
Size: 5XL...........................................................$40.00    
#250 Official USA Softball umpire shirt. Pink with navy 
side flank panel. Self styled collar with navy trim ac-
cent. Performance polyester fabric wicks sweat away 
from your skin to keep you dry. Wrinkle free for easy 
care.
Size: S,M,L,XL...................................................$32.00     
Size: 2XL...........................................................$34.00    
Size: 3XL...........................................................$36.00    
Size: 4XL...........................................................$38.00

PRO STYLE UMPIRE POLO SHIRT
Pro Style umpire shirt. Shirt features Polyester Air Mesh 
fabric for moisture wicking, soil release fabric,  3 button  
placket, extended length cut, left chest pocket.
#118  Black
#128  Red
#138  Powder Blue
#148  Navy
Size: S, M,L,XL..................................................$25.00      
Size: 2XL...........................................................$27.00
Size: 3XL...........................................................$29.00            
         
UMPIRE BASE PANTS - WOMEN’S SIZES ALSO!
Fechheimer® polyester knit pants with metal zipper 
closure. Pant features snug fit, rubberized waistband-2 
zones of stretch, two western-cut pockets, creases set 
and pressed.
#PG    Gray Men’s Base pants - Waist size: 28-54
#PGW    Gray Women’s Base pants - Size: 4-20
#PB    Navy Men’s Base pants - Waist size: 28-54
#PBW    Navy Women’s Base pants - Size: 4-20
..........................................................................$45.00

UMPIRE PLATE PANTS - WOMEN’S SIZES ALSO!
Same as Umpire Base Pants (description above) with 
fuller cut to accommodate shin guards.
#PPG Gray Men’s Plate pants - Waist size: 28-54
#PPGW Gray Women’s Plate pants – Size 4-20
#PPB Navy Men’s Plate pants - Waist size: 28-54
#PPBW Navy Women’s Plate pants – Size 4-20
..........................................................................$47.00

UMPIRE SHORTS
#T Navy Umpire shorts. Features lightweight moisture
wicking twill fabric, comfort grip waistband, metal
zipper, two button front snap, two back pockets and 9”
inseam. Sizing every two inches 28” to 48”.
..........................................................................$35.00
 
ULTRAJOC
#CPJ  Black short combines traditional jock with a 85/15% 
Nylon/LYCRA® support girdle. Features comfortable 
form fitting pouch, that can be used with or without 
athletic cup, provides support for hamstring, groin and 
abdominal muscles.
Size: M 30-34, L 34-38, XL 38-42, 2XL 42-46........
$29.00#CPP Same as Above but in Long Pant Style
Size: M 30-34, L 34-38, XL 38-42, 2XL 42-46........$39.00

JACKETS
USA SOFTBALL PULLOVER JACKET
#2005 Microfiber shell with Stripes over the shoulder. 
Nylon tricot lining, stand-up collar with elastic waistband, 
two slash pockets.
Size: S,M,L,XL...................................................$57.00           
Size: 2XL...........................................................$59.00          
Size: 3XL...........................................................$61.00      
Size: 4XL...........................................................$63.00       
Size: 5XL...........................................................$65.00
#2003 Same as above with no USA Letters

BELTS
#UB Black Leather belt 1 3/4” with silver buckle. 
Size: 28-58........................................................$18.00
#RFB Rubberized, adjustable flex belt. Worn inside pant 
to hold in shirt tail. Fits sizes up to 45”..............$19.00

SOCKS
#CA100 Navy crew sock, 80% Orlon/20% Nylon, 
reinforced heel and toe. Size: 10-13.................$6.95
#CA202 Anklet Socks w/navy USA logo, 80% Acrylic/20% 
stretch nylon. Shoe size 8 1/2 to 12..................$6.95

DIAMOND EQUIPMENT BAG
#5033 Durable fabric with the look and feel of leather, U-
shaped top zipper to main compartment, Two end zipper 
pockets, Front zippered pocket for convenience, Dual 
carry handles with clasp, Adjustable/removable shoulder 
strap. Black  25”x12”x12”..................................$59.00

UMPIRE GARMENT BAG
#2008  Keep your uniform clean with this durable, navy 
USA Softball garment bag. Features inside loop for hang-
ers and external locker strap. Will hold several shirts and 
jacket. 36” Length by 24” Width.
..........................................................................$29.00

FACE MASK AND ACCESSORIES
LIGHT WEIGHT EXTENDED FRAME MASK
#5006V With vinyl pad set. 1 lb. 8 oz................$29.00

WILSON LIGHT WEIGHT EXTENDED FRAME MASK
#5008 Two-tone black PU and tan leather pad set. 1lb 11 
oz. .....................................................................$79.00
#4906 CHAMPRO Quick-Dry replacement pad set. 
..........................................................................$19.00
#4922 6.5 Inch Black impact resistant plastic throat guard 
extension..................................................................$9.00
#5003 Black mask replacement strap set.........$8.00

CHEST PROTECTORS
#5021 Polyester satin front cover and twill back. Adjustable 
elastic harness and steel clips. 16.5” x 23.5” with 17mm 
foam pads…………………….............................$39.00

#5020 Champro Ventilated Chest Protector. Molded high 
impact shoulder caps, adjustable shoulder and back straps. 
Vents in the protector allow for maximum air circulation. 
18” x 17”………………………………………......$49.00

#5010 Diamond IX3 Chest Protector Plastic three layer 
foam for unsurpassed protection and comfort. adjustable 
arm pads to customize the fit to your specific needs. Lined 
with CoolMax fabric for moisture management. Remov-
able sizing plate included. 14” body length (without sizing 
plate) 18.5” body length (with sizing plate)........$89.00

LEG PROTECTION
Featuring Diamond Grid Tech Foam for superior ventila-
tion and comfort. Extremely light weight plastic, Durable 
snap-loc Tifco buckles. Removable toe extensions. 
#5015L Posi-Fit 17”       
#5015M Posi-Fit 15”
..........................................................................$49.00

#5016 - Pro-Plus triple knee leg guards. Contour molded, 
ventilated shin caps, full calf and ankle wings, exclusive 
extra long hinged instep, foot cap is removable. #5016 
Length 18.5”    
#5016M 17”    
#5016S 15.5”
..........................................................................$69.00
#5014 Soccer style leg guards. Light weight designed to 
be worn under socks. 13"..................................$14.00

PLATE ACCESSORIES
BALL BAGS
Inside pocket for indicator and broom. 
Matches umpire pants.
#3320  Navy USA Softball Logo
#3350  Navy (No Logo)
#3420  Gray USA Softball Logo
#3450  Gray (No Logo) 
..........................................................................$11.00
#UPBR Wood handle nylon bristle plate brush with 
ASA® logo..........................................................$4.00
#530 3/2 Umpire Indicator.................................$4.00
#530I 3/2 Umpire Indicator w/innings................$4.00
#530S Steel Umpire Indicator...........................$6.95
#530SI Steel Umpire Indicator w/innings..........$6.95
#625 Flip Coin features mask as head and indicator 
as tails...............................................................$5.00
#TAG Plastic Indicator shaped Luggage Tag....$4.95
 
SHOES
#1015 3N2 PLATE SHOE  Wear resistant, highly polishable 
100% genuine leather construction.  Rugged carbon-fiber 
plate backed by an impact-absorbing cushion. Designed 
to reduce knee and joint stress associated with game-
after-game action. Weight 15.7 oz. Black. Size 6-12 in 
half sizes and 13, 14, 15...................................$95.00

#1014 3N2 BASE SHOE Wear resistant, easily polished 
100% leather construction. Compression molded EVA 
midsole. Weight 12.8 oz. Color black.  Size 6-12 in half 
sizes and 13, 14, 15............................................$65.00

(To convert #1015 and #1014 to Women’s size sub-
tract 1 1/2 size from Men’s sizes. If you wear size 7 
1/2, order size 6)

USA SOFTBALL UMPIRE UNIFORM SALES  1-800-654-8337 Fax: 1-405-424-3855
officialgear.com

We now carry football and 
basketball official gear!

Check us out at 
officialgear.com
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